
Waverley Borough Council
Council Offices, The Burys, 
Godalming, Surrey
GU7 1HR
www.waverley.gov.uk

To: All Members and Substitute Members of 
the Joint Planning Committee
(Other Members for Information)

When calling please ask for:
Ema Dearsley, Democratic Services Officer
Policy and Governance
E-mail: ema.dearsley@waverley.gov.uk
Direct line: 01483 523224
Calls may be recorded for training or monitoring

Date: 31 October 2017

Membership of the Joint Planning Committee
Cllr Peter Isherwood (Chairman)
Cllr Carole Cockburn (Vice Chairman)
Cllr Brian Adams
Cllr Mike Band
Cllr Maurice Byham
Cllr Kevin Deanus
Cllr David Else
Cllr Mary Foryszewski
Cllr Pat Frost
Cllr Michael Goodridge
Cllr John Gray
Cllr Stephen Hill

Cllr Nicholas Holder
Cllr David Hunter
Cllr Jerry Hyman
Cllr Anna James
Cllr Denis Leigh
Cllr Stephen Mulliner
Cllr Nabeel Nasir
Cllr Stewart Stennett
Cllr Chris Storey
Cllr John Ward
Cllr Nick Williams

Substitutes
Appropriate Substitutes will be arranged prior to the meeting

Dear Councillor

A meeting of the JOINT PLANNING COMMITTEE will be held as follows: 

DATE: WEDNESDAY, 8 NOVEMBER 2017

TIME: 6.30 PM

PLACE: COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL OFFICES, THE BURYS, 
GODALMING

The Agenda for the Meeting is set out below.

Yours sincerely 

ROBIN TAYLOR
Head of Policy and Governance

Agendas are available to download from Waverley’s website 
(www.waverley.gov.uk/committees), where you can also subscribe to 

http://www.waverley.gov.uk/committees


updates to receive information via email regarding arrangements for 
particular committee meetings. 

Alternatively, agendas may be downloaded to a mobile device via the free 
Modern.Gov app, available for iPad, Android, Windows and Kindle Fire.

Most of our publications can be provided in alternative formats. For an 
audio version, large print, text only or a translated copy of this publication, 

please contact committees@waverley.gov.uk or call 01483 523351.

This meeting will be webcast and can be viewed by visiting 
www.waverley.gov.uk/committees  

NOTES FOR MEMBERS

Members are reminded that contact officers are shown at the end of each report and 
members are welcome to raise questions etc in advance of the meeting with the 
appropriate officer.

AGENDA

1.  MINUTES  

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 October 2017 (to be laid on 
the table half an hour before the meeting).

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTES  

To receive apologies for absence.

Where a Member of the Committee is unable to attend a meeting, a substitute 
Member from the same Area Planning Committee may attend, speak and vote 
in their place for that meeting.

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  

To receive from Members declarations of interests in relation to any items 
included on the Agenda for this meeting in accordance with the Waverley Code 
of Local Government Conduct.

4.  QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  

The Chairman to respond to any questions received from members of the 
public of which notice has been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 10.

5.  APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION - WA/2017/0512 - LAND AT 
STURT FARM, STURT ROAD,  HASLEMERE, GU27 3SE  (Pages 5 - 50)

mailto:committees@waverley.gov.uk
http://www.waverley.gov.uk/committees


Proposal
Alteration, extension, landscaping and improvement to existing access from 
Sturt Road to land to the rear of Sturt Farm, and the provision of Suitable 
Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG).

Recommendations

RECOMMENDATION A

RECOMMENDATION B

That, subject to conditions and a legal 
agreement to secure the SANG 
requirements and the implementation of 
the access proposed as part of this 
consent instead of the previous 
consented access being completed 
within 6 months from the date of this 
decision, permission be GRANTED.

That, in the event that a Section 106 
agreement is not completed within 6 
months of the date of the resolution to 
grant planning permission, permission 
be REFUSED. 

6.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

To consider the following recommendation on the motion of the Chairman (if 
necessary):-

Recommendation

That pursuant to Procedure Rule 20, and in accordance with Section 100A(4) 
of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following item on the grounds that it is 
likely, in view of the nature of the business transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings, that if members of the public were present during the item, there 
would be disclosure to them of exempt information (as defined by Section 100I 
of the Act) of the description specified at the meeting in the revised Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

7.  LEGAL ADVICE  

To consider any legal advice relating to any application in the agenda.

For further information or assistance, please telephone 
Ema Dearsley, Democratic Services Officer, on 01483 523224 or by 

email at ema.dearsley@waverley.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 46

A1 WA/2017/0512
Concise Construction Ltd
21/03/2017

Alteration, extension, landscaping and 
improvement to existing access from Sturt Road 
to land to the rear of Sturt Farm, and the provision 
of Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace 
(SANG); at  land at Sturt Farm, Sturt Road,  
Haslemere, GU27 3SE

Public Notice: Was Public Notice required and posted: Y
Grid Reference:

Committee: 
Meeting Date:

E: 489012 N: 132310

Joint Planning Committee
08/11/2017

Town: Haslemere
Ward: Haslemere Critchmere and Shottermill
Case Officer: Ryan Snow
8 Week Expiry Date 19/06/2017
Neighbour Notification Expiry Date 28/04/2017

Time extension agreed
Extended expiry date

Yes
10/11/2017

RECOMMENDATION A

RECOMMENDATION B

That, subject to conditions and a legal agreement 
to secure the SANG requirements and the 
implementation of the access proposed as part of 
this consent instead of the previous consented 
access being completed within 6 months from the 
date of this decision, permission be GRANTED.

That, in the event that a Section 106 agreement is 
not completed within 6 months of the date of the 
resolution to grant planning permission, 
permission be REFUSED. 

Agenda Item 5.



Page 2 of 46

CONTENTS

Introduction .......................................................................................................3
Location Plan ....................................................................................................4
Site Description.................................................................................................5
Proposal............................................................................................................5
Proposed Plans.................................................................................................7
Heads of Terms ................................................................................................9
Relevant Planning History.................................................................................9
Planning Policy Constraints ............................................................................11
Development Plan Policies and Proposals .....................................................11
Consultations and Haslemere Town Council Comments................................13
Representations..............................................................................................14
Determining Issues .........................................................................................16
Planning Considerations .................................................................................17
Principle of development.................................................................................17
Loss of the agricultural land ............................................................................17
Impact on the Countryside beyond the Green Belt and Impact on the 
Landscape Character and Designated AONB & AGLV ..................................17
Design.............................................................................................................20
Impact on residential amenity .........................................................................22
Heritage Impacts.............................................................................................23
Trees...............................................................................................................27
Highways, including impact on traffic and parking ..........................................27
Public Rights of Way.......................................................................................30
Flooding and drainage considerations ............................................................30
Archaeological considerations ........................................................................32
Effect on the SPA............................................................................................33
Biodiversity and compliance with Habitat Regulations 2010...........................34
Accessibility and equalities Act 2010, Crime and Disorder and Human Rights 
Implications .....................................................................................................34
Pre Commencement Conditions .....................................................................35
Development Management Procedure (Amendment) Order - Working in a 
positive/proactive manner ...............................................................................35
Environmental Impact Assessment.................................................................35
Third Party Representations ...........................................................................40
Conclusion ......................................................................................................40
Recommendation............................................................................................42
Informatives ....................................................................................................45

file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130683
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130684
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130685
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130686
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130687
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130688
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130689
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130690
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130691
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130692
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130693
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130694
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130695
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130696
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130697
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130698
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130698
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130699
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130700
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130701
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130702
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130703
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130704
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130705
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130706
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130707
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130708
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130709
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130709
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130710
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130711
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130711
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130712
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130713
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130714
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130715
file:///C:/Users/rsnow/Desktop/Sturt%20Farm%20JPC%20Report.doc#_Toc497130716


Page 3 of 46

Introduction

This application has been brought before the Joint Planning Committee at the 
discretion of the Head of Planning Services as it relates to development 
approved under WA/2014/1054, which granted outlines permission for up to 
135 dwellings.

This planning application proposes alterations, extensions, landscaping and 
improvements to the existing access from Sturt Road to land to the rear of 
Sturt Farm. It should be noted that permission ref. WA/2014/1054 has both 
conditions and obligations under a Section 106 agreement requiring the 
approved access, located approximately 50m north along Sturt Road to be 
implemented. This application would not remove the requirement in 
permission ref. WA/2014/1054 to build out the approved access, should that 
permission be implemented. However, a separate application is under 
consideration by the Council ref. WA/2017/1346 which is an application made 
under Section 73 to vary Conditions 3, 18 and 24 of WA/2014/1054 (plan 
numbers, access and landscaping) and to remove Condition 26 (details of 
retaining wall) to reflect the revised access arrangements (access road 
proposed under this application (WA/2017/0512)).

As such, this current application must be assessed on the basis that the 
proposed alterations to the access at Sturt Farm would provide an alternative 
access to facilitate the consented scheme at Sturt Farm for 135 dwellings. An 
obligation within the legal agreement is recommended to ensure both 
accesses could not be implemented and the current application has been 
assessed on this basis. 



Page 4 of 46

Location Plan

Aerial View of Site



Page 5 of 46

Site Description

The application site is located to the east of Sturt Road, Haslemere. The site 
covers approximately 4.29 hectares and is situated approximately 800m to the 
south of the centre of the developed area of Haslemere. 

It comprises the highway and verge at Sturt Road, the existing access track to 
serve Sturt Farm and an area of open countryside (rough grazing land) which 
rises from west to east. The existing access track runs between a cluster of 
residential buildings which are Grade II listed, with the exception of Sturt Farm 
which is a Building of Local Merit. 

To the north are residential properties in Sun Brow and, to the east, the site 
adjoins open countryside which rises towards a highpoint at Longdene House. 

There is a Public Footpath No.35 which runs along the existing access track 
and leads from Sturt Road to Hedgehog Lane to the north. 

Proposal

Planning permission is sought for the alteration, extension, landscaping and 
improvement to the existing access from Sturt Road to land to the rear of Sturt 
Farm and the provision of Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG). 
The proposed access would serve development approved under 
WA/2014/1054. 

Planning permission WA/2014/1054

Planning permission WA/2014/1054 granted outline permission for the 
erection of up to 135 dwellings and associated development including hard 
and soft landscaping, access roads, public open space, dedicated woodland 
and permanent footways and the upgrading of the existing footpath to a 
pedestrian/cycle lane. The application sought approval for the access and 
landscaping only with all other matters reserved. 

Vehicular access to the site would be taken from Sturt Road, to the immediate 
south of the application site. There would be pedestrian links out of the site to 
the public footpath. This consent required an area of Suitable Alternative 
Natural Green Space (SANG) be provided through the legal agreement, but 
the consent did not grant planning permission for this. 



Page 6 of 46

Current scheme 

It is proposed to provide a revised access road to serve the consented Sturt 
Farm development, planning ref. WA/2014/1054. It would comprise the 
alteration and extension to the existing access from Sturt Road to land to the 
rear of Sturt. The access would be broadly on the alignment of and forming an 
extension to the existing access which is between Sturt Farm House and Sturt 
Barns and would comprise a 5.5m wide carriageway with a 1.8m footway on 
the length of the northern and of the carriageway, and a 1.8m footway on the 
south side after the proposed provision of four dedicated off road parking 
spaces. The carriageway would be flanked by landscaping to the boundary 
with Sturt Farm Barn and open land to the southeast, in the form of new low 
walls, hedgerows and tree planting. Some re-grading works will be required to 
accommodate the proposed route of the new road. Disturbed ground either 
side of the road corridor would be re-instated and landscaped on completion. 
The proposed development includes improvements to Sturt Road comprising 
widening the existing junction, minor realignment of the carriageway and the 
provision of a new pedestrian crossing. The proposed access is intended as 
an alternative to that already consented and only one access route would be 
constructed.

It is proposed to change the use of an area of agricultural land to public open 
space to the east of the access for a Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace 
(SANG). The need for the SANG was identified during the determination of 
the consented Sturt Farm development and its provision secured through the 
legal agreement attached to the planning permission prior to the 
commencement of that development. 

A Zoning Plan has been submitted as part of this application. The elements of 
the application are referenced as follows: 

● Area 1: Construction of an alternative access to the Sturt Farm 
development; 

● Area 2: Change of use to SANG land for the Sturt Farm consent 
(WA/2014/1054); 

● Area 3: Part of the Open Space in association with Sturt Farm consent 
(WA/2014/1054). 



Page 7 of 46

Proposed Plans

Zoning Plan

Area 1 as existing with consented access



Page 8 of 46

Area 1 as proposed

Masterplan for revised access and SANG



Page 9 of 46

Heads of Terms

The following matters are subject to a legal agreement under Section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended):

1. Access: In respect of the Sturt Farm Development that only one access 
will be constructed and used (either the access subject to this 
application or the consented access under ref. WA/2014/1054) and 
once that access has been constructed the permission for the other 
access will no longer be capable of being implemented.

2. SANG: Details shall first be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority in respect of the further information requested 
by Natural England in their consultation response dated 17/05/2017. 
These details shall include the following:

a) Finalised details of the chosen SANG Management Company 
(Natural England understand this to be The Land Trust) along 
with confirmed, completed lease agreement information in 
accordance with Section 3.3.3 (b) of the Section 106 associated 
with WA/2014/1054. The Arrangements for the delivery of the 
SANG’ section 5.24 of the SANG Management Plan still 
currently does not confirm who will be responsible for managing 
the SANG.

b) ‘Step-in’ rights agreed in writing with an appropriate body should 
be included within the Management Plan if an alternative 
Management Company is used. Please note this is not required 
if the Land Trust are taking on the site management.

c) Finalised costs including capital and in perpetuity (not just 
yearly) management costs should be included and agreed with 
the Management Company.

d) A final, agreed layout of the SANG, including the circular walk 
position. We require confirmation of the final plan and assurance 
that the revised scheme will provide the required minimum 2.3 
km circular walk.

Relevant Planning History

WA/2017/1346 Application under Section 73 to vary 
Conditions 3, 18 and 24 of 
WA/2014/1054 (plan numbers, 
access and landscaping) and to 

Under 
consideration



Page 10 of 46

remove Condition 26 (details of 
retaining wall) to reflect revised 
access arrangements proposed 
under WA/2017/0512 (amended 
description).

SO/2017/0003 Request for Screening Opinion for the 
alteration and extension of the 
existing access from Sturt Road to 
serve the consented Sturt Farm 
development and the provision of 
substantial increase in public open 
space (including facilitating SANG)

EIA not required 
21/03/2017

SO/2016/0011 Request for Screening Opinion for 
proposed development of land at 
Longdene House for up to 29 
dwelling, amended access points and 
increase in public open space

EIA not required 
05/10/2016

SO/2016/0001 Request for Screening Opinion for an 
alternative access road to serve the 
land to the rear of Sturt Farm

EIA Required 
19/02/2017

WA/2016/2144 Hybrid application: Full application for 
the alteration, extension, landscaping 
and improvement to existing access 
from Sturt Road to land to the rear of 
Sturt Farm, to serve development 
approved under WA/2014/1054; 
Provision of Suitable Alternative 
Natural Greenspace (SANG) to serve 
development approved under 
WA/2014/1054; Change of use to 
public open space to provide potential 
additional SANG; Change of use, 
extension and alterations to office 
building to provide 1 dwelling with the 
erection of a detached garage: 
Outline application, with access and 
landscaping to be determined, for the 
erection of up to 13 dwellings 
following demolition of 2 dwellings, 
glasshouses and outbuildings.

Withdrawn 
26/10/2016



Page 11 of 46

WA/2016/1342 Alterations and extension to existing 
access from Sturt Road to the land to 
the rear of Sturt Farm to serve the 
development recently approved under 
ref. WA/2014/1054, including 
associated landscaping. 

Withdrawn 
22/08/2016

WA/2014/1054 Outline application for the erection of 
up to 135 dwellings together with 
associated development including 
hard and soft landscaping, access 
roads, public open space, dedicated 
woodland and permanent footways 
and the upgrading of existing footpath 
to a pedestrian/cycle link (PROW No. 
35). 

Full Permission 
11/06/2014

SO/2013/0012 Screening Opinion Land at Sturt 
Road, Haslemere Request for 
Screening Opinion for up to 150 
residential units.

Screening 
Opinion Given 
24/12/2013 – 
requires EIA

Planning Policy Constraints

 Countryside beyond the Green Belt – Outside of Developed Area
 Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) (part of site)
 Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV)
 East Hants Special Protection Area 5 Km Buffer Zone
 Wealden Heaths II Special Protection Area 5 Km Buffer Zone 
 Footpath No. 35 (to the north of the site)
 Sturt Farmhouse – Grade II Listed Building
 Upper Barn – Grade II Listed Building
 Granary and shed to south of Sturt Farmhouse – Grade II Listed 

Building
 Sturt Farm Barn – Building of Local Merit
 River bank within 20m (to the south west of Sturt Road)
 Potentially contaminated land
 Section 106 (regarding land at Sturt Road) 
 Gas Pipe Line



Page 12 of 46

Development Plan Policies and Proposals

Saved Policies of the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002: C2, C3, C7, D1, 
D2, D4, D5, D6, D7, D8, D9, RD9, M1, M2, M4, M5, M14, HE2, HE3 and 
HE15. 

Draft Local Plan Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites 2016 Policies: RE1, RE3, 
TD1, NE1, NE2, NE3, SP1, SP2, ICS1, LRC1, HA1, ST1, CC1, CC2, CC3 
and CC4. 

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires all 
applications for planning permission to be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
adopted Local Plan (2002), therefore remain the starting point for the 
assessment of this proposal.
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a material consideration in 
the determination of this case. In line with paragraph 215 due weight may only 
be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of 
consistency with the NPPF. The report will identify the appropriate weight to 
be given to the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002.
 
The Council is currently in the process of replacing the adopted 2002 Local 
Plan with a new two part document.  At the examination in June/July 2017 the 
Inspector indicated that modifications will need to be made to the Plan for it to 
be found sound and invited the Council to submit a list of these proposed 
modifications. The Council’s Executive Committee  has endorsed the 
modifications to be submitted to the Inspector and  these are now subject to 
public consultation.  All representations on the proposed modifications will be 
taken into account by the Inspector before he issues his written report.  It is 
considered that substantial weight can now be given to the policies where no 
modifications are proposed and significant weight can be given to those 
policies where modifications are proposed.

Other guidance:
 The National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF)
 The National Planning Practice Guidance 2014 (NPPG)
 Land Availability Assessment (2016)
 West Surrey Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2015) and 

Addendum (2015)
 Five Year Housing Supply (2017)
 Open Space, Sport and Recreation (PPG17) Study 2012



Page 13 of 46

 Statement of Community Involvement (2014 Revision)
 Council’s Parking Guidelines (2013)
 Vehicular and Cycle Parking Guidance (Surrey County Council 2012)
 Surrey Design Guide (2002)
 Haslemere Design Statement (2012)

Consultations and Haslemere Town Council Comments

County Highway Authority No objection subject to conditions
Haslemere Town Council Objection – the proposed access will 

have a detrimental impact on the 
setting of the listed buildings and as 
such, is in conflict with Policy HE3 of 
the Waverley Borough Council 2002 
Local Plan. 

Natural England No objection - Having reviewed this 
application and received additional 
correspondence from the applicant, 
Natural England remove their 
objection to this application and 
consider that there will be no 
significant adverse impacts on 
designated sites from this 
development.

Surrey County Council Lead Local 
Flood Authority

No objection, subject to conditions

Surrey Hills AONB Officer The proposed SANG lies within the 
AONB while the access proposals lie 
within the AGLV proposed in the 
Waverley Local Plan 2002 as being 
treated as within the AONB.

The studies and proposals relating to 
the proposed SANG have addressed 
the site being within the AONB in a 
sensitive manner. It is also 
considered that the informal nature of 
the proposals would have minimum 
interaction with the existing landscape 
character. The Council will need to 
satisfy itself that sufficient resources 
are provided for the long term 



Page 14 of 46

maintenance of the SANG in a 
suitable way.

Given that permission has already 
been granted to construct a new 
access road, it is considered that the 
current proposal to enlarge and adapt 
the existing access drive nearby 
would be no worse from an AONB 
aspect.

County Archaeologist The current proposals are unlikely to 
threaten significant archaeological 
remains and no archaeological 
concerns are raised.

Environmental Health (Noise and 
other potential nuisances)

No objection.

Environmental Health (Potentially 
contaminated land)

No identified significant issues, no 
action required. 

Historic England On the basis of the information 
available to date, in our view you do 
not need to notify or consult us on this 
application under the relevant 
statutory provisions.

Representations

In accordance with the statutory requirements and the “Reaching Out to the 
Community – Local Development Framework – Statement of Community 
Involvement – August 2014” the application was advertised in the newspaper 
on 07/04/2017, site notices were displayed around the site 07/04/2017 and 
neighbour notification letters were sent on 23/03/2017.

65 letters of representation have been received. 61 letters raising objection, 3 
expressing support and 1 making general comments on the following:

Objections:

 Proposal would result in the inevitable loss of amenity to the properties 
along the eastern side of Orchard Close. 

 Object to the proposed parking on Sturt Road that will create issues of 
overlooking, noise, fumes and glare from headlights that will 



Page 15 of 46

significantly affect the amenity of our properties – a solid acoustic 
screen may mitigate this issue.

 The footpath that links Sturt Avenue with Sturt Road needs further 
consideration.

 Site adjacent to Flood Risk Zone 2 and sits upon an aquifer – drainage 
concerns. 

 Significant harm to the settings of the Listed Buildings.
 Traffic implications.
 Inadequate roads and infrastructure to deal with the proposed 

development.
 Concerns regarding the disposal of dog waste as a result of the SANG. 
 The proposed development through the old Sturt Farm enclave would 

destroy all that the Council’s Officers Report sought to conserve as part 
of WA/2014/1054. 

 Application refers to whether an EIA is required but this is only relevant 
to EIA requirements and not to assessing a planning application which 
may identify other aspects to consider.

 A separate confidential report details comparative viability should be 
available for public examination. 

 The proposed access will not improve the access to the four existing 
dwellings at Sturt Farm as they will have to contend with a large 
number of cars, delivery vans and refuse trucks. 

 There is no public benefit to offset the harm caused to the heritage 
assets. 

 The proposed SANG should be properly considered in the context of 
the approved application WA/2014/1054, their suitability or otherwise 
being part of the existing requirement to provide SANG. 

 Concerns over the accuracy of the agent’s completion of the 
application forms. 

 Many material planning considerations would be flouted if this 
application were allowed.

 The proposal would cause detriment to the tranquil setting created by 
the studios habitation within the historic barn at Lower Barn by constant 
traffic noise.

 Traffic noise, pollution and vibration would damage the fabric of the 
Listed Buildings. 

 There no case to demonstrate the public benefit of the alternative 
access. 

 The proposal would render any music production at Lower Barn 
impossible due to traffic noise and several livelihoods are at stake if 
this plan goes ahead. 



Page 16 of 46

 The proposal would cause harm to the character and beauty of this 
setting and the listed buildings. 

 Impact on biodiversity.
 Impact on residential amenity to surrounding properties.
 Flooding concerns. 
 Vehicles parked in the existing garages at Sturt Farm House will have 

to go directly onto the proposed access, with poor visibility. 
 Safety issues for pedestrians walking along the footpath. 
 Viability report contains inconsistencies, unsubstantiated assertions 

and inaccuracies.

Support:

 Improvement to the scheme from a road safety aspect providing better 
sighting along Sturt Road. 

 Improved public footpath would make it easier and safer for users of 
that footpath. 

 Less of an impact on the Listed Buildings.
 Using the existing road is far better than the original plans in terms of 

topography, natural access and efficiency.
 It is clear to see that using the existing access will have significantly 

less impact on our stretch of Sturt Road than the consented one. 
 There is a need for more housing. 

General Comments:

 Sturt Farm is situated above an aquifer. 

Determining Issues 

 Principle of development
 Loss of agricultural land
 Impact on the Countryside beyond the Green Belt and Impact on the 

Landscape Character and Designated AONB & AGLV
 Design
 Impact on residential amenity
 Heritage Impacts
 Trees
 Highways, including impact on traffic and parking 
 Public Rights of Way
 Flooding and Drainage



Page 17 of 46

 Archaeology
 Effect on the SPAs
 Biodiversity and compliance with Habitat Regulations 2010
 Accessibility and equalities Act 2010, Crime and disorder and Human 

Rights Implications
 Pre Commencement Conditions
 Working in a positive/proactive manner
 Public Benefits of the Proposal
 Third Party Representations

Planning Considerations

Principle of development

The site is located within the Countryside beyond the Green Belt outside any 
defined settlement area.  The NPPF states that, as a core planning principle 
the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside shall be recognised.  
Policy C2 of the Local Plan states that building in the countryside, away from 
existing settlements will be strictly controlled.  

Loss of the agricultural land

The NPPF states that, where significant development of agricultural land is 
demonstrated to be necessary, local planning authorities should seek to use 
areas of poorer quality land in preference to that of a higher quality. This 
sentiment accords with Policy RD9 of the Local Plan which states that 
development will not be permitted which would result in the loss or alienation 
of the best and most versatile agricultural land unless it can be demonstrated 
that there is a strong case for development which overrides the need to 
protect such land.

The fields included within this scheme for the provision of SANG do not form 
part of any agricultural holding. It is evident on site that the area is not 
currently in use for agricultural purposes. As such, the proposal would not 
result in the fragmentation of an agricultural holding. Furthermore, Natural 
England does not classify the land to be of high agricultural value. As such, 
the proposal would not result in the loss or alienation of the best and most 
versatile agricultural land. No objection is therefore raised to the loss of the 
agricultural field and its impact on any agricultural holding, subject to securing 
the SANG through a section 106 agreement.  



Page 18 of 46

Impact on the Countryside beyond the Green Belt and Impact on the 
Landscape Character and Designated AONB & AGLV

Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 states that in 
exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as to affect, land in 
an area of outstanding natural beauty, a relevant authority shall have regard 
to the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the area of 
outstanding natural beauty.

Paragraph 17 of the NPPF 2012 sets out that within the overarching roles that 
the planning system ought to play, a set of core land-use planning principles 
should underpin both plan-making and decision-taking. These 12 principles 
are that planning should: inter alia take account of the different roles and 
character of different areas, promoting the vitality of our main urban areas, 
protecting the Green Belts around them, recognising the intrinsic character 
and beauty of the countryside and supporting thriving rural communities within 
it.

Waverley Local Plan Policy C3 is the relevant development plan policy for 
determining planning applications in the AONB. Inter alia, the policy includes 
the following relevant statements on the AONB. “The primary aim of 
designation is to conserve and enhance their natural beauty. Development 
inconsistent with this primary aim will not be permitted unless proven national 
interest and lack of alternative sites has been demonstrated.”

Policy RE1 of the Draft Local Plan Part 1 state that the intrinsic beauty of the 
countryside will be recognised and safeguarded in accordance with the NPPF.

Policy RE3 of the Draft Local Plan Part 1 states that new development must 
respect and where appropriate, enhance the distinctive character of the 
landscape in which it is located. 

The Surrey Hills AONB Management Plan 2014 – 2019 has been formally 
adopted by all the constituent planning authorities and the Surrey Hills AONB 
Board following public consultation. It is therefore a material planning 
consideration. The following policies are relevant to the determination of this 
application.

Policy LU1 – In balancing different considerations associated with determining 
planning applications and development plan land allocations, great weight will 
be attached to any adverse impact that a development proposal would have 
on the amenity, landscape and scenic beauty of the AONB.



Page 19 of 46

Policy LU2 – Development will respect the special landscape character of the 
locality, giving particular attention to potential impacts on ridgelines, public 
views, tranquillity and light pollution. The proposed use and colour of external 
materials will be strictly controlled to avoid buildings being conspicuous in the 
landscape.

Policy LU3 – Development proposals will be required to be of high quality 
design, respecting local distinctiveness and be complimentary in form, setting 
and scale with their surroundings, and should take any opportunities to 
enhance their setting.

The Surrey Hills AONB Management Plan 2014-2019 emphasises the 
significant development pressures and threats to which the Surrey Hills are 
subjected to and states, being so close to London and other urban areas 
means there are significant development pressures on the Surrey Hills 
landscape. These pressures are expected to increase and justify especially 
stringent controls of development. The cumulative effect of many, often small, 
developments over decades and centuries would reduce the landscape and 
scenic beauty of the Surrey Hills and spoil it for future generations. These and 
other pressures and threats outlined in Section 1.8 are considered to justify 
the policies below for strict controls of development in this most sensitive of 
landscapes. 

The site is located within the Countryside beyond the Green Belt outside any 
defined settlement boundary, is partially within the Surrey Hills AONB and is 
entirely within the AGLV. The Surrey Hills AONB designation encompasses 
the eastern part of the application site where the provision of SANG is 
proposed and a small section of the proposed access. 

The Surrey Hills AONB Officer has been consulted as part of this application. 
It is considered that the proposals relating to the proposed SANG have 
addressed the site being within the AONB in a sensitive manner. The Surrey 
Hills AONB Officer also considers that the informal nature of the proposals 
would have minimum interaction with the existing landscape character. 

Landscaping works would be required to mark out a circular walk route with 
waymarkers. Pathways would be laid out to avoid any steep inclines. Signage 
and interpretation boards are also proposed throughout the SANG with details 
to be agreed under condition. The planting of species-rich grassland, trees 
and shrubs is proposed and access points to the SANG will be provided from 
an existing public footpath, one of these will provide access for any machinery 
such as mowers. 



Page 20 of 46

The proposed change of use to provide SANG would result in the 
formalisation of natural open countryside. The proposed footpaths, signage 
and other activities associated with a recreational area would result in a 
change in character of the area. However, any changes would be of a modest 
scale and would have a limited impact on the surrounding character. As such, 
the proposed change of use would have limited prominence in the broader 
landscape and would not cause material harm to the Countryside and would 
not fail to conserve or enhance the landscape character and natural beauty of 
the AONB and AGLV.

In terms of the alternative access, the proposal would utilise an existing 
access, although it would result in its formalisation by way of its widening, 
regrading and resurfacing. The topography of the site results in the access 
being set on significantly lower land levels than the adjoining land to the north 
east. It should be noted that only a small section of the proposed access 
would be located within the designated AONB. 

The Surrey Hills AONB Officer considers that given that permission has 
already been granted to construct a new access road, the current proposal to 
enlarge and adapt the existing access drive nearby would be no worse from 
an AONB aspect. 

An obligation in the Section 106 agreement is recommended to ensure only 
this access or the consented access is implemented and not both. The access 
proposed as part of the extant scheme involves the excavation of a bank 
between Sturt Road and the site. Whilst the proposal would involve some 
regrading of land to provide level access, this will not be on the same scale 
and as such, the impact on the landscape would be less than the extant 
scheme. 

Therefore, the proposed changes to the access would have limited 
prominence in the broader landscape over the approved scheme and would 
not cause material harm to the Countryside. Furthermore, the proposal would 
conserve the landscape character and natural beauty of the AONB and AGLV.

Design

The NPPF attaches great importance to the design of the built environment as 
a key part of sustainable development.  Although planning policies and 
decisions should not attempt to impose architectural styles or particular tastes, 
they should seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness.  Policies D1 
and D4 of the Local Plan 2002 accord with the NPPF in requiring development 



Page 21 of 46

to have high quality design and to be well related in size, scale and character 
to its surroundings.

Paragraph 56 of the NPPF 2012 states that the Government attaches great 
importance to the design of the built environment.  Good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and 
should contribute positively to making places better for people.

Paragraph 57 of the NPPF 2012 states that it is important to plan positively for 
the achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all development, 
including individual buildings, public and private spaces and wider area 
development schemes. 

Paragraph 58 of the NPPF 2012 states that local and neighbourhood plans 
should develop robust and comprehensive policies that set out the quality of 
development that will be expected for the area. Such policies should be based 
on stated objectives for the future of the area and an understanding and 
evaluation of its defining characteristics.  Planning policies and decisions 
should aim to ensure that developments:
 will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the 

short term but over the lifetime of the development;
 establish a strong sense of place, using streetscapes and buildings to 

create attractive and comfortable places to live, work and visit;
 optimise the potential of the site to accommodate development, create 

and sustain an appropriate mix of uses (including incorporation of green 
and other public space as part of developments) and support local 
facilities and transport networks;

 respond to local character and history, and reflect the identity of local 
surroundings and materials, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation;

 create safe and accessible environments where crime and disorder, and 
the fear of crime, do not undermine quality of life or community cohesion; 
and 

 are visually attractive as a result of good architecture and appropriate 
landscaping.

The Haslemere Design Statement (2012) states that where new development 
is proposed, imaginative solutions should be found, to achieve higher density 
without undermining the character of the existing area, and goes on to say 
that care must be taken to ensure that any new development sits well in the 
street-scene and the form of any new development must be appropriate for 
the site in which it sits. 



Page 22 of 46

Regarding the proposed extensions and alterations to the access, the existing 
access track is partly existing paved and gravelled and would require the 
formalisation of the hard surfacing and provision of footpaths, road markings, 
lighting etc. The existing access road runs from the east side of the 
carriageway to the north east between Sturt Farm House and The Granary 
extending 110m from Sturt Road. The proposed access road would be 
broadly on the alignment of and forming an extension to the existing access 
and comprise a 5.5m wide carriageway with a 1.8m footway on the south side 
after the proposed provision of 4 dedicated off-road parking spaces. The 
carriageway would be flanked by landscaping to the boundary with Sturt Farm 
Barn and open land to the south east, in the form of new low walls, hedgerows 
and tree planting. The small parking area would be provided containing 4 
parking spaces to the south side of the access road. It is proposed to 
undertake some re-grading works to accommodate the proposed route of the 
new road with distributed ground to either side of the road corridor to be re-
instated and landscaped on completion.

Whilst it is noted that the proposed works to the access would formalise it and 
change the character and appearance of the area, the design together with 
the proposed materials are considered to be appropriate in terms of their 
impact on visual amenity. 

Furthermore, the proposed change of use to form SANG would have a limited 
impact on the surrounding character and is considered acceptable in terms of 
their impact on visual amenity. 

The proposals are therefore considered to accord with Local Plan Policies D1, 
D4 and the NPPF in this regard.

Impact on residential amenity

The NPPF identifies that within the overarching roles that the planning system 
ought to play, a set of core land use planning principles should underpin both 
plan-making and decision making. These 12 principles include that planning 
should seek to secure a good standard of amenity for all existing and future 
occupants of land and buildings. These principles are supported by Policies 
D1 and D4 of the Local Plan and guidance contained within the Council’s SPD 
for Residential Extensions.

The proposed alterations and extensions to the existing access track to serve 
the consented scheme of 135 dwellings would change the character of the 
area significantly and would result in an increase in vehicle movements close 



Page 23 of 46

to the cluster of dwellings around Sturt Farm. This would result in an increase 
in noise and disturbance to the amenities of the adjoining properties. In 
addition, the proposed change of use of agricultural land to Public Open 
Space to be used as Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) to 
serve the Sturt Farm development (ref. WA/2014/1054) would result in an 
increase in vehicle movements through the access road to access the SANG 
and the proposed parking spaces to serve them. 

Concerns have been received from third parties with regard to the increase in 
vehicle movements and the likely impact on neighbouring residential amenity, 
including the use of Lower Barn as a music recording studio. Officers note that 
the use of Lower Barn as a music recording studio is ancillary to the 
residential use of the dwelling at Upper Barn. Whilst it is accepted that the 
proposal would result in change to the character of the area, it is considered 
that this is not an unusual relationship within a residential area and the 
proposed access would not impact on the amenities of these properties to 
such an extent as to warrant refusal of the application. The Council’s 
Environmental Health Officers have also considered the potential noise impact 
of the development, and raise no objection on these grounds. 

The operational development itself, both from the access and SANG would 
not impact on these residential properties by reason of loss of light, outlook or 
visual intrusion. 

A condition is recommended to ensure the lighting is appropriate and does not 
unacceptably impact on these residential properties. 

As such, the proposal would be acceptable in respect of its impact on the 
amenities of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policies D1 and D4 of 
the Local Plan 2002.

Heritage Impacts

The statutory test for the assessment of proposals affecting listed buildings 
and their settings is contained in Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, which states that in considering 
applications which affect Listed Buildings, Local Planning Authorities must 
have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting 
or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.



Page 24 of 46

Policy HE3 of the Local Plan 2002 state that development should preserve or 
enhance the character and setting of Listed Buildings and Buildings of Local 
Merit.

Policy HE3 outlines that where development is proposed that will affect a 
listed building or its setting, high design standards will be sought to ensure 
that the new development is appropriate and compatible in terms of siting, 
style, scale, density, height, massing, colour, materials, archaeological 
features and detailing.

In this instance, consideration is given to the impact of the proposal on the 
setting and special architectural merits of the adjacent Grade II Listed 
Buildings (Sturt Farmhouse, Upper Barn, Granary and shed to south of Sturt 
Farmhouse) and the Buildings of Local Merit (Sturt Farm Barn) in accordance 
with Local Plan Policy HE3.

Paragraph 128 of the NPPF states that ‘Local Planning Authorities should 
require and applicant to describe the significance of any heritage assets 
affected, including any contribution made to their setting. The level of detail 
should be proportionate to the assets’ importance and no more than is 
sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on their 
significance’. 

Paragraph 129 of the NPPF states that ‘Local Planning Authorities should 
identify and assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may 
be affected by a proposal (including by development affecting the setting of a 
heritage asset) taking account of the available evidence and any necessary 
expertise. They should take this assessment into account when considering 
the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise conflict 
between the heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal. 

The definition of ‘heritage asset’ in the NPPF includes listed and locally listed 
buildings. The site lies adjacent to Listed Buildings which are considered to be 
designated heritage assets and a Building of Local Merit which is considered 
to be a non-designated heritage asset.

The NPPF defines ‘significance’ as the value of a heritage asset to this and 
future generations because of its heritage interest. That interest may be 
historic. Significance derives not only from a heritage assets physical 
presence, but also from its setting.



Page 25 of 46

Paragraph 133 states that ‘Where a proposed development will lead to 
substantial harm to or total loss of significance of a designated heritage asset, 
local planning authorities should refuse consent, unless it can be 
demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve 
substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the 
following apply:

 The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the 
site; and

 No viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium 
term through appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; 
and

 Conservation by grant funding or some form of charitable or public 
ownership is demonstrably not possible; and

 The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back 
into use.

Policy HA1 of the Draft Local Plan Part 1 seeks to ensure that the significance 
of the heritage assets within the Borough are conserved and enhanced to 
ensure the continued protection and enjoyment of the historic environment. 

The significance of Sturt Farm and its agricultural buildings (now in residential 
use) lie in the survival of the complex and the continued opportunities to 
recognise, understand and appreciate the agricultural character of the 
collection of historic buildings and their spatial arrangement. Despite the 
separation of ownership of the buildings and the conversion of the agricultural 
buildings to domestic use, the arrangement and its relationship with the land 
continues to be perceptible. The farm complex and its immediate setting are in 
contrast to the suburban arranged development to the north and west. The 
significance of the farm lies in the fact it is separate from this later residential 
development and acts as a reminder of the historic relationship between the 
town of Haslemere and the surrounding countryside.  The type of dwellings 
and their functions do contrast between settlement and countryside. The 
essential characteristic is the dispersed nature of rural farm dwellings and a 
close spatial relationship with their associated ancillary buildings. 

The proposed change of use from agricultural land to the provision of a SANG 
would be located to the east of the site a significant separation distance from 
Sturt Farm and the other Listed Buildings / Building of Local Merit. Due to this 
separation distance this element of the proposal would not cause harm to the 
significance of the heritage assets and would preserve their setting.



Page 26 of 46

The Council’s Heritage and Design Officer has been consulted as part of this 
current application. It is considered that the increased width and formalisation 
of the access road will dilute the setting of the historic farm complex and 
reduce the ability to recognise and appreciate the relationship between the 
buildings that form the farm complex. Although there has been a change to 
the character of the historic farmyard through the erection of private 
boundaries and the creation of parking areas this has not been so intensive 
that an appreciation of the space as a historic farmyard has been lost. The 
relationship between the buildings can be perceived and this is due to the 
private nature of the collection of residences. The number of vehicular 
movements is low and the subtle relationship between surfaces lends the 
space a relaxed and informal character. The proposal to widen the existing 
access road to the point were several of the buildings are squeezed will 
change the character of the space considerably. The result will be a formal 
and suburban road arrangement that will dilute the setting of the Listed 
Buildings and the Building of Local Merit to a point where their relationship as 
a single farm complex will not easily be recognised. 

The extant scheme was considered to cause less than substantial harm to the 
significance of the heritage assets because of the increased suburbanisation 
of the area and the provision of a suburban junction and access road which 
would cause harm to the setting of the Listed Buildings and Building of Local 
Merit.  This proposal would also cause less than substantial harm to the 
significance of the heritage assets and would not preserve their setting.  The 
less than substantial harm identified would be greater than that of the extent 
scheme, as whilst the suburbanisation from the proposed dwellings would be 
similar, the access would directly cut through the middle of the farm complex 
resulting in a further dilution of their setting.   

Paragraph 134 of the NPPF 2012 outlines that in considering development 
that may result in less than substantial harm to a designated heritage asset, 
this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, 
including the possibility of securing its optimal viable use. Only where the 
benefits are found to outweigh the harm to the designated heritage asset 
should the development be approved. The test in respect of Buildings of Local 
Merit in respect of paragraph 135 of the NPPF is also relevant, which also 
requires the benefit to be weighed against the identified harm.  

Officers are therefore of the view that as there would be some harm to the 
setting of the heritage assets as a result of the proposed development, the 
proposal cannot be said to meet the statutory tests of Section 66 of the 



Page 27 of 46

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 of preserving or 
enhancing the heritage assets and their settings. 

In light of the above, and the guidance contained in the NPPF, the public 
benefits of the proposal will be considered within the ‘Public Benefits of the 
Proposal’ section later on in this report. 

Trees

The NPPF 2015 states that planning permission should be refused for 
development resulting in the loss or deterioration of aged or veteran trees 
found outside ancient woodland, unless the need for, and benefits of, the 
development clearly outweigh the loss.  

Policy D7 of the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002 broadly support the aims 
of the NPPF stating that the Council will protect significant trees and groups of 
trees and hedgerows through planning control.

It is noted that the proposed access would result in the loss of young trees 
and hedging currently within/bounding the properties on the west of the 
existing properties along the access. However, it is considered that none of 
these trees are of a size or form that makes them a significant material 
constraint on proposed development. The proposed planting (plan no. 
1027.03A) is considered to provide reasonable mitigation to this impact. 

No concerns are raised with regard to the enabling of greater public use of the 
land and the formalisation to provide SANG. This element was accepted in 
principle as part of application WA/2014/1054. 

Highways, including impact on traffic and parking 

The National Planning Policy Framework 2012 outlines that transport policies 
have an important role to play in facilitating sustainable development but also 
in contributing to wider sustainability and health objectives. 

Paragraph 32 states: “All developments that generate significant amounts of 
movement should be supported by a Transport Statement or Transport 
Assessment. Plans and decisions should take account of whether:

 the opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken up 
depending on the nature and location of the site, to reduce the need for 
major transport infrastructure;

 safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people; and



Page 28 of 46

 improvements can be undertaken within the transport network that cost 
effectively limit the significant impacts of the development. 

Development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where 
the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe”.

The Transport Statement dated February 2017 which accompanies the 
application assesses existing transport conditions in the area and assesses 
the impact of the proposed development.  

It is proposed to carry out alterations and extensions to the existing access 
from Sturt Road to the land to the rear of Sturt Farm to serve the development 
recently approved under ref. WA/2014/1054, including associated 
landscaping.

The access will be broadly on the alignment of and forming an extension to 
the existing access and would comprise a 5.5m wide carriageway with a 1.8m 
footway on each side and the proposed provision of 4 dedicated off-road 
parking spaces. The width of the approved access was also 5.5m. The 
carriageway would be flanked by landscaping to the boundary with Sturt Farm 
Barn and open land to the south east, in the form of new low walls, hedgerows 
and tree planting. A small parking area would be provided containing 4 
parking spaces to the south side of the access road to serve the SANG. Some 
re-grading works will be required to accommodate the proposed route of the 
new road with distributed ground to either side of the road corridor to be re-
insulated and landscaped on completion. The development also includes 
widening the existing junction, minor realignment of the carriageway and the 
provision of a new pedestrian crossing point.  

The Highway Authority has visited the site and assessed the proposed access 
arrangement on highway safety and capacity grounds. The Highway Authority 
is satisfied that that the proposed access arrangement is suitable to serve the 
previously consented development (ref: WA/2014/1054). The Highway 
Authority note that this proposal would require the minor realignment of Sturt 
Road, to the south of the proposed site access, utilising a small strip of the 
area of hardstanding which is used for parking. Provision for parking on this 
area of hardstanding will be retained and the Highway Authority has agreed 
with the applicant that the proposed works will include formalising this area 
with marked parking bays and dropped kerbs to improve access to the parking 
bays.

In light of the above, The County Highway Authority has undertaken an 
assessment of the application as a whole and in terms of the likely net 



Page 29 of 46

additional traffic generation, access arrangements and parking provision is 
satisfied that the application would not have a severe impact on the safety and 
operation of the adjoining public highway. The County Highway Authority 
therefore has no objections subject to conditions.

Concerns have been raised with regard to the visibility splays afforded to the 
users of the garage at Sturt Farm House when driving onto the proposed 
access. As stated above, the Highway Authority considers the proposed 
access arrangements to be acceptable. Furthermore, the details of any 
boundary treatment either side of the existing garage at Sturt Farm House can 
be controlled by condition and have been recommended as part of this report. 

The NPPF 2012 supports the adoption of local parking standards for both 
residential and non-residential development. 

The Council has adopted a Parking Guidelines Document that was prepared 
after the Surrey County Council Vehicular and Cycle Parking Guidance in 
January 2012. Development proposals should comply with the appropriate 
guidance as set out within these documents.

The applicant submits that guidance on SANG provision from Natural England 
indicates that there should be 1 car parking space required for every 2 
hectares of SANG, but that parking will not be required for sites of less than 
4ha. A total of 3.55ha of SANG is required to serve Sturt Farm, for which no 
parking is required as it is less than 4ha in size and the residents it serves live 
next to the SANG. Notwithstanding this, a total of 4 spaces are proposed as 
part of the alternative access road. Natural England has considered this 
proposal and raises no objection. The Council have no guidelines for parking 
for SANGs and consider this level to be appropriate. 

Concerns have been raised with regard to the loss of parking outside Sturt 
Farm House. Sturt Farm House is served by a double garage located to the 
north of the dwelling. The occupants have stated that they are also able to 
park in front of this garage. The submitted plans demonstrate that the area to 
the front of the garage is under the ownership of the applicant. This is an 
informal parking space and the occupants of Sturt Farm House could only 
park here with the permission of the owner, which could be withdrawn at any 
time. As such, whilst the loss of a space is a negative element of the scheme, 
this is given limited weight. It is further noted that there is parking for 2 cars in 
the garage and so the under provision for this property in relation to 
Waverley’s guidance amounts to 0.5 spaces. This is not a significant shortfall. 



Page 30 of 46

In light of the above, it is considered that the proposal would accord with 
Policies M2 and M14 of the Local Plan 2002. 

Public Rights of Way

Policy M4 of the Local Plan requires developments to include safe, convenient 
and attractively designed pedestrian routes linking to existing or proposed 
pedestrian networks, public open space, local facilities and amenities or, 
public transport.

Policy LT11 of the Local Plan states that the Council, will seek to ensure that 
deemed rights of way are safeguarded, protected and enhanced to encourage 
their use.

Public Footpath 35 runs adjacent to the northern site boundary. The plans 
submitted in support of this application show that the footpath would continue 
along the proposed access to the site to serve the proposed residential 
scheme approved under WA/2014/1054 and the SANG proposed as part of 
this application. The Countryside Rights of Way Officer has been formally 
consulted on the application but has not provided any comments. They were 
also consulted on application WA/2016/1342 and raised no objection to the 
proposal. As such, it is considered that there would be no objection in respect 
of the impact of the development on footpaths and the proposal would accord 
with Policy M4 and LT11 of the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002 in this 
regard. 

Flooding and drainage considerations

Paragraph 100 of the NPPF states that inappropriate development in areas at 
risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas 
at high risk, but where development is necessary, making it safe without 
increasing flood risk elsewhere.

Paragraph 101 of the NPPF states that the aim of the Sequential Test is to 
steer new development to areas with the lowest probability of flooding.  
Development should not be allocated or permitted if there are reasonably 
available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower 
probability of flooding.  The Strategic Flood Risk Assessment will provide the 
basis for applying this test.  A sequential approach should be used in areas 
known to be at risk from any form of flooding.



Page 31 of 46

Paragraph 103 of the NPPF states that when determining planning 
applications, local planning authorities should ensure flood risk is not 
increased elsewhere and only consider development appropriate in areas at 
risk of flooding where, informed by a site-specific flood risk assessment 
following the Sequential Test, and if required the Exception Test, it can be 
demonstrated that:

 within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of 
lowest flood risk, unless there are overriding reasons to prefer a 
different location; and

 development is appropriately flood resilient and resistant.

Policy CC4 of the Draft Local Plan Part 1 states that in order to reduce the 
overall and local risk of flooding, development must be located, designed and 
laid out to ensure that it is safe; that the risk from flooding is minimised whilst 
not increasing flood risk elsewhere and that residual risks are safely 
managed. In those locations identified as being at risk of flooding, planning 
permission will only be granted where it can be demonstrated that it is located 
in the lowest appropriate floor risk location, it would not constrain the natural 
function of the flood plain and where sequential and exception tests have 
been undertaken and passed. Sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) will be 
required on major development proposals. 

Decisions on planning applications relating to major developments should 
ensure that SuDS for the management of run-off are put in place, unless 
demonstrated to be inappropriate. Under these arrangements, Local Planning 
Authorities should consult the relevant Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) on 
the management of surface water; satisfy themselves that the proposed 
minimum standards of operation are appropriate and ensure through the use 
of planning conditions or planning obligations that there are clear 
arrangements in place for ongoing maintenance over the lifetime of the 
development. The SuDS should be designed to ensure that the maintenance 
and operation requirements are economically proportionate.

The NPPG states that whether SuDS should be considered will depend on the 
proposed development and its location, for example where there are concerns 
about flooding. SuDS may not be practicable for some forms of development. 
New development should only be considered appropriate in areas at risk of 
flooding if priority has been given to the use of SuDS. When considering major 
development, SuDS should be provided unless demonstrated to be 
inappropriate. Whether a SuDS system is appropriate to a particular 
development proposal is a matter of judgement for the Local Planning 



Page 32 of 46

Authority and advice should be sought from relevant flood risk management 
bodies, principally the LLFA. 

The site is located within 20m of a river bank (to the south west of Sturt 
Road). The site is also located in flood zone 1 and as such, there is not an 
unacceptable risk of flooding. It should be noted that the SANG and Open 
Space in Area 2 and 3 will drain naturally to ground as no additional non-
permeable hard surfacing or buildings are proposed. 

The applicant submits that the alternative access road would result in a 
reduction in hard surfaced area in comparison to the consented scheme. The 
altered and extended access will increase the area of hardstanding by 
640sqm over the existing situation. The consented access road comprises 
840sqm of hard standing. As such there is a reduction in 200sqm of 
hardstanding. It is therefore considered therefore that the proposal would 
reduce the amount of run-off from the site in comparison to the consented 
proposal WA/2014/1054. The County Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has 
been consulted as part of the application process and raises no objection 
subject to conditions. 

As such it is considered that the development is not at risk of flooding, will not 
result in an increased flood risk off-site and provides appropriate measures for 
draining. 

Archaeological considerations

Paragraph 128 of the NPPF sets out that in determining applications, local 
planning authorities should require an applicant to describe the significance of 
any heritage assets affected, including any contribution made by their setting. 
The level of detail should be proportionate to the assets’ importance and no 
more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on 
their significance. As a minimum the relevant historic environment record 
should have been consulted and the heritage assets assessed using 
appropriate expertise where necessary. Where a site on which development is 
proposed includes or has the potential to include heritage assets with 
archaeological interest, local planning authorities should require developers to 
submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and, where necessary, a field 
evaluation.

Policy HE15 of the Local Plan requires proposals for large scale 
developments (over 0.4 hectares) not in an area already defined as of High 
Archaeological Potential, the Council will require that an archaeological 



Page 33 of 46

assessment is provided as part of the planning application, and the same 
provisions as in Policy HE14 (b) (c) and (d) will apply. 

The areas impacted upon by the proposals have been previously disturbed to 
some extent and this is the case for the majority of the route of the proposed 
new access route. As such, significant archaeological remains are unlikely to 
be impacted upon by this proposal. The proposed SANG area is to remain 
largely untouched and so any archaeological deposits that may exist in this 
area will remain preserved in situ. It is considered that the current proposals 
are unlikely to threaten significant archaeological remains and as such, there 
are no archaeological concerns in this instance. The proposal is therefore 
considered acceptable in this regard. 

Effect on the SPA 

The site is located within the Wealden Heaths and East Hants 5km SPA 
Buffer Zones. It is proposed to change the use of the land in area 2 from 
agriculture to SANG. SANG is required in order to mitigate the impact of 
increased human activity on European protected areas and the nearby 
Special Protection Area (SPA). SANG must meet a number of criteria set by 
Natural England and 8ha of land must be provided for every 1,000 of new 
population generated by new development. The applicant submits that the 
change of use is required in order to ensure that the 135 homes in the Sturt 
Farm permission (permission WA/2014/1054) can be delivered to help meet 
housing need. 

Part 3.3 of Schedule 2 of the Section 106 agreement for the Sturt Farm 
development sets out the requirements for the provision of SANG to serve the 
approved 135 homes. Part 3.3.2 (c) requires that planning permission is 
obtained to use the land as SANG prior commencement of the Sturt Farm 
Development. The SANG land is defined in the S.106 as follows: 

 Be for unrestricted public use and access for recreation and amenity.
 Be an area of land measuring 3.53 hectares. 

It is considered that the proposed SANG meets these criteria. The area of 
proposed SANG would be 3.55 hectares which exceeds the requirement of 
3.53 set out in the Sturt Farm S.106. It does not require car parking as it is 
adjacent to the Sturt Farm development and does not exceed 4ha. There 
would be access points from the Sturt Farm development to provide 
unrestricted access and a circular path would be provided. 



Page 34 of 46

Natural England consider that there will be no significant adverse impacts on 
designated sites from this development. No objection to the use of the land as 
SANG has been raised, subject to further information being submitted to meet 
the requirements within the SANG Management Plan. This would be secured 
through the section 106 agreement. 

In light of the above, Officers take the view that the provision of SANG is 
acceptable in this instance and an appropriate assessment is not required. 

Biodiversity and compliance with Habitat Regulations 2010

The NPPF requires that when determining planning application, local planning 
authorities should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity by applying the 
following principles:

If significant harm resulting from a development cannot be avoided (through 
locating on an alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately 
mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for then planning permission 
should be refused.

Surrey Wildlife Trust has been consulted as part of this application and raise 
no objection subject to a condition requiring the applicant to undertake all the 
recommended actions in The SANG Management Plan contained within the 
Proposals for the Delivery of an area of Suitable Alternative Natural 
Greenspace (SANG) document by Ecology Solutions Ltd dated October 2014 
including the proposed conservation management regime.

Surrey Wildlife Trust note that concerns have been raised with regard to a 
badger sett being located within the application site. It is considered that while 
this sett is unlikely to be affected by the proposed access from Sturt Road 
onto the site, its likely location would place the sett within the proposed SANG 
and it could be adversely affected by SANG works or the use of the SANG 
with its resultant anthropogenic effect. They therefore advise that a proposed 
badger survey is required to help inform the design of the SANG to avoid it 
adversely affecting legally protected badgers. A condition has been 
recommended to require the undertaking of a badger survey prior to the 
commencement of development. 

Accessibility and equalities Act 2010, Crime and Disorder and Human Rights 
Implications

There are no implications for this application. 



Page 35 of 46

Pre Commencement Conditions

“Pre commencement condition” means a condition imposed on the grant of 
permission which must be complied with: before any building/ other operation/ 
or use of the land comprised in the development is begun.

Article 35 of the DMPO 2015 requires that for any application for planning 
permission, the Notice must state clearly and precisely the full reasons, in the 
case of each pre-commencement condition, for the condition being a pre-
commencement condition. 

Where pre commencement conditions are justified, these are provided with an 
appropriate reason for the condition. 

Development Management Procedure (Amendment) Order - Working in a 
positive/proactive manner

In assessing this application, officers have worked with the applicant in a 
positive and proactive manner consistent with the requirements of paragraphs 
186-187 of the NPPF.  This included:-

 Provided or made available pre application advice to seek to resolve 
problems before the application was submitted and to foster the 
delivery of sustainable development.

 Provided feedback through the validation process including information 
on the website, to correct identified problems to ensure that the 
application was correct and could be registered;

 Have suggested/accepted/negotiated amendments to the scheme to 
resolve identified problems with the proposal and to seek to foster 
sustainable development. 

 Have proactively communicated with the applicant through the process 
to advise progress, timescales or recommendation. 

Environmental Impact Assessment

On 4th July 2016, the Secretary of State, pursuant to Regulation 5(7) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2011 (as amended 2015), issued a screening opinion (ref: SO/2016/0001) to 
the applicant that the proposal for an alternative access road to serve land to 
the rear of Sturt Farm would not constitute EIA development within the 
meaning of the Regulations.



Page 36 of 46

Public Benefits of the Proposal

The applicant has submitted information that seeks to expand on material 
already submitted, including the Design Statement submitted on the 6th June 
2017 and the Heritage Statement which accompanied the original application. 
This information comprises:

Plans 
● Aerial Overlay of Permitted Sturt Farm Access (078/PL/61A); 
● Aerial Overlay of Proposed Access (083/PL/62); 
● Masterplan Extract – Alternative Access (17117/SK12B) – 132 Units; 
● Sketch Section A-A (17117/SK13B); 
● Sketch Section B-B (17117/SK14B); 
● Masterplan Extract – Permitted Access (17117/SK15B) – 121 Units; and 
● Aerial View from the South (17117/SK16B) – showing land affected by 
consented access; 
● Proposed Cut and Fill for Access Road with Retaining Wall and Bank Option 
– Fairhurst - (114456/2004A). 

Report 
● Addendum Heritage Statement by Purcell. 

This information seeks to demonstrate that significant public benefits would 
arise from the approval of the proposed access, when set against the 
permitted scheme. These benefits comprise; the impact on Landscape and 
Streetscape, Heritage, Delivery of Housing, Design and Speed of Delivery, 
SANG and Highways and Construction. 

In terms of the impact on Landscape and Street Scene, the proposed access 
works with the existing landscape and topography would not require the 
clearance of significant areas of existing vegetation or the removal of the 
existing retaining wall on Sturt Road. The submitted drawings demonstrate 
that the proposed alternative access would not open-up views into the new 
development at this location, as the permitted access would. As such, it is 
considered that the overall impact of the development upon the character of 
the area is greatly reduced. Having assessed the impact on landscape 
character and visual amenity earlier on in this report, Officer agree that the 
overall impact of the development as a result of this current proposal would be 
reduced. 

In terms of Heritage impacts, an updated Heritage Report has been submitted 
and concludes that, the permitted access would have a Medium Adverse 



Page 37 of 46

effect on the adjoining heritage assets. In comparison with the permitted 
access, the proposed access would have a low beneficial impact. The report 
finds that when viewed against each other the impact of the alternative access 
is considerably less than that of the permitted access. Officers disagree with 
the findings of this report for the reasons set out in the heritage section above 
and conclude that the less than substantial harm identified would be greater 
than that of the permitted scheme. 

With regard to the delivery of housing, design and speed of delivery, the 
applicant seeks to argue that the 135 dwellings approved under 
WA/2014/1054 cannot be delivered to the full extent and only 121 dwellings 
could be delivered. This is in comparison to this proposed scheme which 
could deliver 132 dwellings. The two layouts (drawing nos. SK12B and 
SK15B) compare the design implications of the two access options. These 
plans include the requirements for the placement of surface water attenuation 
installations which are required to comply with the relevant Flood Risk 
Assessment assumptions and planning conditions imposed under 
WA/2014/1054. Officers consider that the plans demonstrate that the use of 
the proposed access would allow the site to accommodate 11 additional units, 
4 of which would be affordable homes. This increase in deliverable units is a 
significant benefit that must be weighed in the balance when determining this 
application. 



Page 38 of 46

Example layout plan using consented access

Example layout using proposed alternative access



Page 39 of 46

In addition to the above, the applicant states that early approval of the 
proposed access would accelerate the build programme for Sturt Farm 
(permission WA/2014/1054) as it involves significantly less infrastructure 
works than the permitted route. Officers agree that the proposed access has 
the potential to be delivered faster than the extant access. 

The applicant has put forward that the proposed SANG is a planning benefit 
weighing in favour of the scheme. Whilst this is a benefit, the SANG could 
come forward without the amended access and as such, it is given limited 
weight in relation to the public benefits to outweigh the harm caused to the 
designated and non-designated heritage assets. 

Finally, it is put forward that the Framework Construction Management Plan 
submitted as part of this application provides a comparison in terms of the 
work needed and disruption which will be necessary to implement the two 
alternative access options. It goes on to identify the benefits which would 
come as a result of the proposed access. The approved access would require 
the closure of the road and the existing access would need to be utilised 
during the early stages which would alter the character of the existing road in 
any case. In contrast, the construction of the proposed access requires only 
limited short term traffic management on Sturt Road and no substantial 
earthworks, thereby not only minimising disruption during the construction 
phase, but also significantly accelerating the delivery of new housing. Whilst 
Officers consider that the character of the existing road would be altered 
during construction, this would be temporary and as such, only limited weight 
can be afforded to this benefit. It is, however, agreed that there would be less 
disruption to road users during the construction phase as a result of the 
proposed access. 

Officers have carefully assessed the benefits of the proposed access put 
forward by the applicants. In this instance, it is considered that there would be 
a greater amount of less than substantial harm to the significance of the 
heritage assets over the extant scheme. These would be outweighed by the 
public benefits in terms of preserving the character of the landscape, 
minimising traffic disruption and delivering 11 additional units, 4 of which 
would be affordable homes and delivering the overall scheme more quickly. 
As such, it is considered that the proposal would be in accordance with 
Policies HE3 of the Local Plan 2002 and paragraphs 128, 129, 131 and 132 of 
the NPPF 2012. Paragraphs 133 and 134 of the NPPF would be invoked.



Page 40 of 46

Third Party Representations

Third party representations have been received stating that the Council should 
not assess planning applications that seek to amend an approved scheme 
without good reason. Under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) it is open to an applicant to submit valid applications to the Council 
seeking to amend an approved permission. The Council must assess the 
applicant that is in front of them on its merits and cannot refuse an application 
on the basis that permission has already been granted. It is for Officers to 
assess the proposal against material planning considerations and make a 
recommendation. 

Concerns have been raised relating to the fact that the submitted viability 
information is confidential and is not made accessible to the public. Any 
viability information that is submitted to the Council that includes commercially 
sensitive information must remain confidential. This information is sent on to 
independent financial consultants so that it can be scrutinised and the Officers 
can be advised accordingly.   

Third party representations have been received on a number of technical 
matters. On technical matters the Council consults with the relevant statutory 
consultees for advice and takes this into account as part of the overall 
decision making process. 

Conclusion 

Planning permission is sought for the alteration, extension, landscaping and 
improvement to existing access from Sturt Road, to land to the rear of Sturt 
Farm, and the provision of Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG); 
to serve development approved under WA/2014/1054. 

In forming a conclusion, the NPPF requires that the benefits of the scheme 
must be balanced against any negative aspects of the scheme.

The proposed extension and alterations to the existing access track and the 
change of use to provide SANG would have a limited impact on the 
surrounding character of the area. Therefore, the proposal would have limited 
prominence in the broader landscape and would not cause material harm to 
the Countryside and would conserve the landscape character and natural 
beauty of the AONB and AGLV. It is considered that this proposal would be an 
improvement over the consented access in terms of its impact on landscape 
character. 



Page 41 of 46

The proposal would not result in the loss or alienation of the best and most 
versatile agricultural land, and would not result in the fragmentation of an 
agricultural holding so as to seriously undermine the economic viability of the 
remaining holding.

The County Highway Authority has assessed this application and conclude 
that the access and highway improvements put forward would be sufficient to 
accommodate this increase in traffic.

The proposal has demonstrated, subject to control by way of planning 
conditions that in terms of flood risk the development would be safe for its 
lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its users without increasing flood 
risk elsewhere.  

It is acknowledged that the consented scheme would result in the delivery of a 
substantial level of both market and affordable housing approved at outline 
stage. However, the alternative access would allow for the provision of 11 
additional residential units at Sturt Farm, 4 of which would be on site 
affordable homes over what could be delivered with the extant access. This 
would contribute significantly towards housing in the Borough. The proposal 
would allow for the greater provision of onsite affordable housing, an 
important consideration which weighs in favour of the scheme. 

The proposal includes provision for a SANG intended to avoid any likely 
significant effects upon the Wealden Heaths SPA and enables the delivery of 
the new homes.   

The proposal would cause less than substantial harm to the significance of 
designated heritage assets (including statutory Listed Building and Building of 
Local Merit). The test set out within Section 66 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 has not been met, however, in 
accordance with the NPPF guidance, any harm identified must be weighed 
against any public benefit. It is considered that the identified harm is 
considered to be outweighed by the public benefits of the proposal namely; 
preserving the character of the landscape, minimising traffic disruption and the 
delivery of additional housing over the extant scheme, that this scheme would 
achieve.

In accordance with paragraph 134 of the NPPF 2012 the proposed 
development would result in less than substantial harm to designated heritage 
assets, and it is considered that this harm would be outweighed by the public 
benefits of the proposal. 

Officers consider that the adverse impact in terms of heritage would not 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the scheme 



Page 42 of 46

particularly the delivery of housing having regard to the immediate need for 
additional housing and the lack of alternative deliverable sites to achieve the 
level of housing that is required, when assessed against the policies in the 
NPPF taken as a whole. 

Officers consider therefore that this scheme could be supported subject to the 
inclusion of appropriate conditions and the conclusion of the appropriate legal 
agreement.

Recommendation A

That permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. Condition
The plan numbers to which this permission relates are 083/PL/001, 
083/PL/02, 083/PL/06, 083/PL/14, 083/PL/63, 083/PL/64, 083/PL/65, 
078/PL/61A, 083/PL/62, 17117/SK12B, 17117/SK13B, 17117/SK14B, 
17117/SK15B, 17117/SK16B, 114456/2004A, 71171027.5.02, 1027.5.03A, 
1027.5.04 and 02 Rev K. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans.  No material variation from these plans shall take 
place unless otherwise first agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason
In order that the development hereby permitted shall be fully implemented in 
complete accordance with the approved plans and to accord with Policies D1 
and D4 of the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002.

2. Condition
No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used in 
the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason
In the interest of the character and amenity of the area in accordance with 
Policies D1 and D4 of the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002. This is a pre 
commencement condition because it goes to the heart of the permission.

3. Condition
Prior to the commencement of development the following details shall be 
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:



Page 43 of 46

a) A SuDS design that is compliant with the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS, National Planning Policy Framework and Ministerial 
Statement on SuDS.
b) Evidence that the proposed solution will effectively manage the design 
storm events (+Climate change allowance).
c) Details of how the Sustainable Drainage System will cater for system failure 
or exceedance events, both on and offsite.
d) Finalised drawings read for construction to include: a finalised drainage 
layout detailing the location of SUDS elements, pipe diameters, levels, details 
of how SuDS elements will be protected from root damage and long and cross 
sections of each SuDS element and including details of any flow controls.
e) Details of how the Sustainable Drainage System will cater for system failure 
or exceedance events, both on and offsite.
f) Details of how the Sustainable Drainage System will be protected and 
maintained during the construction of the development.
g) Details of maintenance regimes and responsibilities of the drainage and 
SuDS elements during the operation and lifetime of the systems shall be 
submitted.

Reason
To ensure the design meets the technical stands for SuDS and the final 
drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site in accordance with 
paragraphs 100-103 of the NPPF. This is a pre-commencement condition 
because the details go to the heat of the permission. 

4. Condition
Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried 
out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that the Sustainable Urban 
Drainage System has been constructed as per the agreed scheme.

Reason
To ensure the Sustainable Drainage System is constructed as proposed in 
accordance with Policies D1, D4 and D12 of the Waverley Borough Local Plan 
2002. 

5. Condition
Prior to commencement of the development approved under reference 
WA/2014/1054, the proposed alterations and extensions to the existing Sturt 
Farm access onto Sturt Road shall be constructed in general accordance with 
the approved drawings and subject to the Highway Authority's technical and 
safety requirements. Once provided, the access and visibility splays shall be 
permanently retained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.



Page 44 of 46

Reason
In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users in accordance with Policy M2 of 
Waverley Borough Council's Local Plan 2002.

6. Condition
No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management 
Plan, to include details of:

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) storage of plant and materials
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
(e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones
(f)  HGV deliveries and hours of operation
(g) vehicle routing
(h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
(i) on-site turning for construction vehicles 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the 
construction of the development.

Reason
In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users in accordance with Policy M2 of 
Waverley Borough Council's Local Plan 2002. This is a pre-commencement 
condition because it goes to the heart of the permission. 

7. Condition
The landscaping scheme shall be carried out strictly in accordance with plan 
no. 1027.03A. The landscaping shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority for a period of 5 years after planting, such 
maintenance to include the replacement of any trees and shrubs that die or 
have otherwise become, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, 
seriously damaged or defective.  Such replacements to be of same species 
and size as those originally planted.

Reason
In the interest of the character and amenity of the area in accordance with 
Policies D1 and D4 of the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002. This is a pre-
commencement condition because it goes to the heart of the permission. 



Page 45 of 46

8. Condition
No construction works or deliveries shall be carried out at the site except 
between the hours 08:00 - 18:00 Monday to Friday, 08:00 - 13:00 Saturday 
and not at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

Reason
In the interest of the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policies D1 and 
D4 of the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002.

9. Condition
No development shall commence until a further badger survey by a qualified 
ecologist is undertaken to assess current badger status on the site and to 
provide mitigation proposals to demonstrate how the proposed development 
could proceed without adverse effect to legally protected badgers, is 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved 
details. 

Reason
To ensure that protected species under schedules 1 and 5 of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 are not endangered in accordance with Policy D5 of the 
Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002. This is a pre-commencement condition 
because it goes to the heart of the permission. 

10. Condition
Prior to the commencement of development, details of any external lighting to 
be erected on site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance 
with the approved details.

Reason
In the interest of the neighbouring residential amenities of the area, in 
accordance with Policies D1 and D4 of the Waverley Borough Local Plan 
2002. This is a pre-commencement condition because it goes to the heart of 
the permission. 

Informatives 

1. The Highway Authority has visited the site and assessed the proposed access 
arrangement on highway safety and capacity grounds. The Highway Authority 
is satisfied that that the proposed access arrangement is suitable to serve the 
previously consented development (ref: WA/2014/1054). Any reserved 
matters application for the residential development should include this 
alternative access arrangement. It should be noted that this proposal would 



Page 46 of 46

require the minor realignment of Sturt Road, to the south of the proposed site 
access, utilising a small strip of the area of hardstanding which is used for 
parking. Provision for parking on this area of hardstanding will be retained and 
the Highway Authority has agreed with the applicant that the proposed works 
will include formalising this area with marked parking bays and dropped kerbs 
to improve access to the parking bays.

2. The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked 
with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements 
of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

Recommendation B

That, in the event that a Section 106 agreement is not completed within 6 
months of the date of the resolution to grant planning permission, permission 
be REFUSED.


	Agenda
	5. APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION - WA/2017/0512 - land at Sturt Farm, Sturt Road,  Haslemere, GU27 3SE

